
JPWard  and Associates LLC       

 

Miromar Lakes Community Development District 

 

Regular Meeting Agenda 

March 8, 2018 

 

Visit our Web Site at:    www.miromarlakescdd.org 

Prepared by: 

JPWARD AND ASSOCIATES LLC 

2900 Northeast 12th Terrace, Suite 1 
Oakland Park, Florida 33334 

E-Mail:  JimWard@JPWardAssociates.com 
 PHONE:  (954) 658-4900 

 



 

 

MIROMAR LAKES 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

James P. Ward 
District Manager 
 

2900 NORTHEAST 12TH TERRACE, SUITE 1 
OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA 33334 
PHONE (954) 658-4900 
E-MAIL JimWard@JPWardAssociates.com 

www.miromarlakescdd.org 

 
 
 
February 22, 2018 
 
Board of Supervisors  
Miromar Lakes Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Miromar Lakes Community 
Development District will be held on Thursday, March 8, 2018, at 2:00 P.M. at the Beach 
Clubhouse, 18061 Miromar Lakes Parkway, Miromar Lakes, Florida 33913. 
 
1. Call to Order & Roll Call 

 
2. Consideration of Minutes: 

a) Regular Meeting – January 11, 2018 
 
3. Consideration of Resolution 2018-3 ratifying Board approval at the January 11, 2018 

meeting to accept the lake maintenance easement along Miromar Lakes Unit X (Bellini),  
and assignment of dedication from the Master HOA for Unite XVII – Costa Maggiore – 
Phase 1, and finally the assignment of reservations from Miromar Development  for Lake 
Maintenance Easements ofr Unit IX – Anacapri and Castelli, Unit X – Volterra, Unit IX (Open 
Space) Tracts, A, B and C – Anacapri and Castelli and open space in unit X – Volterra.   

 
4. Staff Reports 

a) Attorney 
b) Engineer 
c) Asset manager 

I. Consideration of Utilization of funds remaining for priority re-planting areas in 
the CDD. 

II. January, 2017 Report 
d) Manager 

I. Financial Statements for the period ending January 31, 2018 
 

5. Supervisor’s Requests and Audience Comments 
 
6. Adjournment 

http://www.miromarlakescdd.org/


2 | P a g e  
Miromar Lakes Community Development District 
 

 

James P. Ward 
District Manager 
 

2900 NORTHEAST 12TH TERRACE, SUITE 1 
OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA 33334 
PHONE (954) 658-4900 
E-MAIL JimWard@JPWardAssociates.com 

www.miromarlakescdd.org
  

 
The second order of business is consideration of the minutes of the January 11, 2018 regular 
meeting.  
 
 
The balance of the Agenda is standard in nature and I look forward to seeing you at the meeting, 
and if you have any questions and/or comments, please do not hesitate to contact me directly 
at (954) 658-4900. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
Miromar Lakes 
   Community Development District 
 
 
James P. Ward 
District Manager 
Enclosures 

 
 

The Fiscal Year 2018 schedule is as follows 
 

October 12, 2017 November 9, 2017 
December 14, 2017 January 11, 2018 
February 8, 2018 March 8, 2018 
April 12, 2018 May 10, 2018 
June 14, 2018 July 12, 2018 
August 9, 2018 September 13, 2018 

 
 

http://www.miromarlakescdd.org/
http://www.miromarlakescdd.org/


1 | P a g e  
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
MIROMAR LAKES 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 
 The Regular Meeting of the Miromar Lakes Community Development District’s Board 
of Supervisors was held on Thursday, January 11, 2018, at 2:00 p.m. at the Beach 
Clubhouse, 18061 Miromar Lakes Parkway, Miromar Lakes, Florida 33913. 
 

Board members present and constituting a quorum: 
 

 Dr. David Herring    Chairman  
 Mr. Doug Ballinger   Vice Chairman  
 Mr. Alan Refkin    Assistant Secretary 
 Mr. Michael Weber    Assistant Secretary 

 
Board members absent: 
 
Mr. Burnett Donoho  Assistant Secretary 
 
 
Staff present: 

 
 James Ward    District Manager  
 Greg Urbancic    District Counsel 
 Paul Cusmano   Calvin Giordano & Associates 
 Bruce Bernard   Calvin Giordano & Associates 
 Charlie Krebs     District Engineer 
 

Audience: 
 
 Tim Byal    Miromar Development Corporation 
 Mike Elgin    Miromar Lakes Master Association 
 
 
1. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
 Mr. Ward called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m.  A roll call determined all members 
of the Board were present with the exception of Supervisor Donoho.  
 
 
2.  Consideration of Minutes 
 

a) November 9, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
Mr. Ward asked if there were any deletions, corrections or additions to the 
minutes.  A point for clarification was brought forth concerning exactly what the 



Miromar Lakes Community Development District January 11, 2018 

2 | P a g e  
 
 

Board had approved regarding the cost of hurricane damage as it pertained to 
properties that were not currently owned by or turned over to the CDD.        
 
Mr. Ward responded that his understanding was the Board had indicated it would 
be the property owners’ responsibility to make repairs up to the point that the 
property was turned over to the District.  He continued that to the extent there 
was additional work to be done related to Hurricane Irma once it had been turned 
over, the District would pick up that differential.  He said that included Bellini and 
Voltera which were the two primary areas.  Mr. Ward added that both he and Mr. 
Urbancic spoke about this issue before the meeting, and  the minutes were not 
clear on this point. 
 
Mr. Ward stated it was up to the Board what was to be done in this situation.  He 
said the property had not been turned over yet, and the District was ready to do 
the work in those areas if they could get the documents ready.  He said he had 
halted the repair work at this time. 
 
Dr. Herring suggested that the Board should begin with a clarification of what the 
process was for turnover.  The understanding was that when a Community was 
ready to be turned over to the CDD, the CDD came in and inspected the property 
and identified any issues which needed to be addressed prior to turn over.  If 
there were issues, they would be repaired by the Community or the HOA, and then 
turned over to the CDD.  From that point, the CDD was responsible for everything 
going forward. 
 
Mr. Ward responded that as it related to new construction, this was correct.  He 
said essentially the developer, upon completion of construction of a facility, went 
through a process where the District inspected and brought back the necessary 
documents for the turnover.  He said frankly this had been the first time this issue 
had occurred, where the property had already been turned over to homeowners 
without these documents being done, and it was also the first time they had had 
a hurricane of magnitude.  
 
A comment was made that the Board needed to assess the situation without 
taking the hurricane into consideration.  It was stated that when property was 
accepted from the Developer, the Board required that all of the permits be filed, 
and there was no construction that needed to be done.  There was no need to 
handle the current situation any differently.  Once the property was turned over in 
a condition that the Board accepted, from that point forward, the CDD would 
maintain it.  It was stated this was what some of the Board members thought had 
been said at the last meeting. 
 
Mr. Ward said the decision was up to the Board. 
 
It was pointed out that what Mr. Ward was saying was a little bit different.  Mr. 
Ward was saying that if there was a $200,000 assessment on a property, then 
that $200,000 was going to go towards repairs.  Following this, the CDD would 



Miromar Lakes Community Development District January 11, 2018 

3 | P a g e  
 
 

take over the future repairs and maintenance of that property.  If there was 
anything found that needed repairs that might have been related to damage 
caused by the hurricane, the CDD would pick it up at that point. 
 
The Board agreed and was saying to go through the normal process; however, Mr. 
Ward was saying go through the normal process, but if there was anything that 
needed to be done once the turnover occurred, the CDD would be responsible for 
it.  It sounded like an engineering study would not be done prior to accepting the 
property, and if one was done, then based on Mr. Ward’s interpretation, the CDD 
would be saying here’s a list of items that still needed to be addressed, but the 
CDD would pick it up. 
 
Mr. Ward responded this was a different condition in that two Communities had 
been turned over to homeowners without the Developer going through the 
process of turning the Communities over to the CDD.  He said he did not think the 
homeowners had known this, and they had been blind-sided.  He said he had 
sympathy for these residents, and the magnitude was rather monumental when 
the CDD was paying for the entire restoration of the hurricane damage in the rest 
of the Community.  He said it was clearly the Board’s decision. 
 
Mr.  Ballinger asked Mr. Urbancic where the Board stood legally, if their decision 
invited law suits.  He responded he did not have any concern with either decision. 
 
It was pointed out it was important not to deviate from past practices. 
 
Mr. Refkin stated that the Board needed to set a standard for the future dealings 
of these issues.   
 
Mr. Urbancic stated that if the corporate organization had done the right thing to 
begin with, this conversation would not be necessary.  Mr. Ward said that was his 
point. 
 
It was also pointed out the operating budget of the CDD did not include the cost 
of maintaining that property. 
 
Mr. Ward responded that some of the property went into a lake, but as it related 
to shoreline maintenance, that program had just started this year. 
 
Mr. Refkin said there was a great deal the CDD was just becoming involved in 
which it had not been in the past.  He said the Board was seeing an evolution of 
issues such as the drainage system. 
 
Mr. Byal said that after hearing this discussion, there was a little confusion 
concerning Bellini in restoration versus improvement.  He said the CDD could 
take the responsibility to restore back to condition; but if there was a decision 
that an addition of riprap was an enhancement to the shoreline, that would be 



Miromar Lakes Community Development District January 11, 2018 

4 | P a g e  
 
 

different from restoration back to the original condition.  He said the shoreline 
without riprap would be okay if there was not another hurricane.   
 
Dr. Herring asked if the Board would accept the properties from the developer in 
the condition that they are in now, and he stated that they would not. 
 
Mr. Byal said what the Board didn’t know and the homeowners didn’t know was 
that the situation would occur. 
 
Dr. Herring said what people knew was not important, and the fact was this 
property was now being turned over to them, but it needed to be brought up to 
acceptable levels. 
 
Mr. Byal pointed out that these homeowners paid the same fees as other 
homeowners to the CDD, which included a principal amount, which was for the 
cost of the infrastructure and an O & M piece for maintenance.  He said all along 
Bellini has been paying their proportionate share of the principal cost of the 
infrastructure.   The fact that it was not physically turned over to the CDD was a 
legal engineering formality as opposed to an economic event.   
 
Mr. Refkin said that he understood the point Mr. Byal was making. 
 
Mr. Byal clarified that he was not saying that the Board should be responsible for 
the riprap, but rather he was trying to come up with a compromise.  He said 
Ravenna paid for their own coast to riprap their shoreline, but restoring the lake 
bank was a different situation. 
 
Mr. Refkin said having a standard to adhere to was critical in going forward.  He 
asked if when the CDD got involved in an issue, would they be paying to bring it 
up to a standard where they would normally accept it.  He said the CDD should 
not accept it until it was brought up to the minimum acceptable standard. 
 
Mr. Byal said he would argue that the CDD had accepted this property a long time 
ago and had been maintaining it.  He said the fact that there was no transfer of 
documents did not change how they maintained it.  The CDD had been treating 
the property as if it was theirs.  He said the CDD did not realize until recently that 
the property had not been turned over. 
 
Dr. Herring pointed out that the CDD could not do water management and 
exclude that part of the lake. 
 
Mr. Byal responded that the properties were effectively turned over a long time 
ago, but the paper work had not been properly done. 
 
Mr. Ward stated that prior to Hurricane Irma, everything in the Communities was 
fine; it was post hurricane that was the problem. 
 



Miromar Lakes Community Development District January 11, 2018 

5 | P a g e  
 
 

Mr. Refkin asked what the dollar amount was for these repairs. It was also asked 
if the section being discussed was the shoreline or the internal lake.  The 
response was the shoreline. 
 
Mr. Bernard stated he would break down the cost into riprap and restoration.  The 
restoration was basically $64,000, and the riprap was about $80,000.  He said 
there was riprap in certain sections prior to the hurricane.  He said the riprap was 
put in place by the builders, but the hurricane took the riprap and the shoreline all 
the way up to the buildings. 
 
The question was asked if the shoreline and riprap were replaced, and another 
hurricane occurred, would it destroy it again. 
 
Mr. Bernard stated he was not saying that.  He said the reason it took it away this 
time was the prevailing winds came across there.  He said that was the place 
where the most damage occurred, and only the east facing riprap was gone. 
 
It was said that there was special assessment coming up because they had 
depleted the reserves to cover the cost of repairs, and if the CDD were to take the 
cost of these repairs and include it in the special assessment, even though its 
legally not their property, could they be sued. 
 
Mr. Urbancic said it would need to be their property to do the work; otherwise, it 
would be problematic. 
 
Dr. Herring said in his area, Capri, there was going to be an assessment done, 
and if his Community found out the CDD covered the assessment of property it 
didn’t own, that would be a problem.  He said he was not anti-Bellini, but in the 
past, property had not been accepted unless it met a certain criteria.  He said that 
would be the safest guideline to follow. 
 
Mr. Ward said the only difference was that it was in a condition that the CDD 
would have accepted prior to Irma. 
 
Dr. Herring said if house was being purchased and not settled when the hurricane 
came and knocked the roof off, you would not buy the house. 
 
Mr. Rizzo said this was a total change in direction to what they had been told over 
the last three months, and his Board would be surprised.  He followed on Mr. 
Byal’s comments, and stressed Bellini’s owners comprised over $750,000 of 
CDD assessments since 2008, and they were not aware that their properties 
were not covered like everybody else’s properties were covered.  He said the CDD 
Board and its managers and advisors had some responsibility to advise Bellini of 
this fact.  He said the issue arose over the storm water retention pond, which was 
on the Board’s plan as L6 and was on the permit.  Bellini did not have the permit; 
the CDD had the permit.  He asked for verification of this fact, and it was said that 
the CDD owned the permit but not the application. 



Miromar Lakes Community Development District January 11, 2018 

6 | P a g e  
 
 

 
Mr. Rizzo asked how the owners in Bellini were to know this fact if the CDD Board 
did not tell them.  How were they to know if the people that held the permit, the 
CDD, did not tell them that the asset had not been transferred? 
 
Mr. Refkin pointed out that the CDD did not know the asset had not been 
transferred either. 
 
 Mr. Rizzo responded that Bellini residents were never told that part of the money 
that they were paying was going to support other people’s maintenance, but not 
theirs.  He said he thought that was an issue that the Board had to think through.       
 
Dr. Herring said he did not think the money had necessarily been paid to support 
other people’s maintenance, but to maintain the water quality in the entire 
Community and the maintenance of the grounds outside of the Community, 
median strip, berms on I75, so that everyone’s property values would be 
maintained.  He said there was a great deal more involved to whatever dues were 
paid. 
 
It was pointed out that up until South Florida Water Management had done their 
inspection and made the determination that regardless of applications or 
ownership of applications, the water management system was the CDDs, the CDD 
only maintained up until control.  So, any improvements up to control, which was 
elevation 18 and below in the water elevation, was what the CDD maintained.   
Everything from control up was all maintained by the homeowner.  So, any of the 
riprap that was in the shoreline in an easement, even if the CDD owned the lake 
and the CDD owned the easement, that riprap, that shoreline, would have been 
the responsibility of the homeowner.  That changed, as far as his understanding, 
when the South Florida Water Management District came in and threw caution to 
the wind and started changing how they were going to enforce permits.  This 
situation was similar to what happened with Vivaldi where the residents in Vivaldi 
were responsible for maintaining everything from 18 up.  They had to make all of 
their fixes, all of their improvements, before the CDD was going to do any repairs 
from 18 down. 
 
The comment was made that there was $1.2 million in Storm Water Management 
improvement which included items above the 18 foot mark, to restore lake banks 
on Storm Water Management lakes.  It was pointed out that came into effect after 
South Florida Water Management came in and made the statement that it did not 
matter.  If the CDD owned it and it had an easement, the CDD had the 
requirement to maintain it if the homeowner did not. 
 
It was stated there were other communities where ponds had not been improved 
or maintained that now the CDD had stepped in and improved.     
 
The comment was made that the lakes which had been improved were lakes the 
CDD already owned, and the shoreline that was being improved had gone through 



Miromar Lakes Community Development District January 11, 2018 

7 | P a g e  
 
 

its life cycle where it needed to be restored.  It was stated as the lakes go up and 
down, they create steps and material which has eroded away.  Every so many 
years, the lakes must be restored to be brought into compliance with the District 
permit.  He stated that anything being done on existing lakes was anything more 
than what would have been done prior to the District requirement. 
 
An argument was made that this work extended beyond the 18 foot control 
elevation.  He said they were now going up into private property on an easement 
and improving private property. 
 
Mr. Ward stated that in a few minor instances they have had to go above control 
because of the storm, but generally that would not be a normal event.  He said if 
it was in an easement that was controlled by the District, they had the right to 
maintain that easement area in its sole and absolute discretion.  The underlying 
fee title may be owned by anyone, but the District has an easement on top of it 
and the District maintained.  So, it was not correct to say the District maintained 
private property.  There was an easement over that which gave the District the 
right to go into the easement areas and maintain them. 
 
Mr. Elgin responded to a comment made that if they improved Bellini, they would 
be improving private property.  He said it would not be right to make that 
argument with Bellini and then have other property treated differently in the same 
format.  He said the CDD was a quasi-public quantity that had some fiduciary 
responsibility to all the people who were paying assessments, including the Bellini 
residents.  He said he was only asking for fair treatment, but with respect to the 
legal problem, some of the responsibility for that had to go to the CDD Board and 
its advisors.  He said the Bellini residents had no idea this was the case. 
 
Dr.  Herring asked Mr. Byal when people buy property in Miromar, were they told 
about the various HOA responsibilities and the existence of a CDD. 
 
Mr. Byal responded no one would have the documentation in question without 
conducting exhaustive research into the plats and condo docs and so forth to be 
able to discern this situation existed.  It was not possible that someone during a 
normal course of acquisition of a property would be able to discern the situation.  
They were told there was a CDD and an HOA and a Condo Association.  He said it 
would not be reasonable that anybody in Bellini could have ever understood one 
way or another. 
 
Dr. Herring said what needed to be addressed was Mr. Rizzo’s comment that it 
was the CDD’s responsibility to let the Bellini residents know. 
 
Mr. Ward said he did not agree with Mr. Rizzo’s comment. 
 
Mr. Byal said he did not agree either and commented that it was just the situation 
that existed.  He said the transfer and easement was not established and this 
conveyance did not occur in its normal course of events. 



Miromar Lakes Community Development District January 11, 2018 

8 | P a g e  
 
 

 
Mr. Ward added that it had happened because there was a developer who went 
bankrupt. 
 
Mr. Byal said at the end of the day, it was important to make sure that assets 
were tested and inspected, but the CDD wanted to own this asset to have a 
complete system.  He said the CDD could say there won’t be a transfer, not pay 
the money to have an easement done, and the residents would just leave it or 
repair it back to the way it was, and that wouldn’t be good. 
 
Mr. Refkin asked how much difference this would make in the assessment. 
 
Mr. Ward responded this was a $144,000 problem over 1900 units. 
 
Dr. Herring pointed out this was a dangerous precedent. 
 
Mr. Ward stated the larger issue was they were going into Fiscal Year 2019 
looking at probably a million dollar assessment to restore from Hurricane Irma.  
Plus, he said after this storm, he realized that the CDD did not have enough cash 
to deal with these issues.  He said a million dollars over 1900 units was a big 
number. 
 
Mr. Refkin said the amount would be $76 extra on the assessment of $144,000.  
He said he could see both sides of the issue.  He said this assessment would go 
from about $500 to $600, but if a bigger reserve was necessary, it could go 
higher. 
 
Mr. Elgin stated if they get reimbursed from FEMA that could be their reserve. 
 
Mr. Refkin said they may not know for years about FEMA.  He asked how much 
that would be, and the response was $360,000, but anything that was not owned 
could not be claimed.  He said the question was not fixing property that was not 
owned; the question was whether to assume the asset and then fix it for 
$144,000.  He said if they had bought the property as it should have happened, 
this would not be an issue.  He said the Board generally tried to not spend the 
resident’s money.  He said his choice would be to just take responsibility, make 
the repairs and go forward. 
 
A comment was made that anything above 18 would be covered by the 
easement, which Mr. Bernard pointed out FEMA would not reimburse.  Anything 
from 18 below, the CDD owned, and so FEMA would reimburse those repairs.  Mr. 
Ward stated that has always been the case. 
                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Mr. Ward called for a motion.   
 



Miromar Lakes Community Development District January 11, 2018 

9 | P a g e  
 
 

Motion was made by Dr. Herring and seconded by Mr. Refkin to 
proceed with the acquisition of the Bellini and Volterra property 
as described above, and with three members in favor, and Mr. 
Weber abstaining for financial reasons, the motion was 
approved. 

 
Mr. Ward said he would provide a conflict of interest form to Mr. Weber which 
would be filed.  He then called for a motion to approve the minutes. 
 

Motion was made by Mr. Refkin and seconded by Dr. Herring to 
approve the minutes of the November 9, 2017, meeting, and 
with all in favor, the motion was approved. 

 
Mr. Bernard asked in the future what the method would be, and Dr. Herring 
responded that the method would be to look at each case individually. 
 
   

3.   Consideration of Award and Bid for Lake and Wetland Maintenance 
 
 Mr. Ward asked Mr. Bernard to present information for this item.  
 
 Mr. Bernard explained there were three vendors.  He said Lake Masters was the 
current service being used, and their bid was $2500 higher than Superior.  He said Lake 
Masters was the only company that answered all the questions in the bid, concerning 
financial status and equipment.  He said on a daily basis Lake Masters would give them the 
same work force, but they have a bigger work force if there were issues.  He said another 
consideration was knowledge of the project, and Lake Masters had been there for years and 
were familiar with issues.  If the Board awarded the bid to this company, they knew what 
was going on and what to do.  He said their prior contract was $108,000, and the current 
contract was $90,000. 
 
 Mr. Ballinger asked if dealings with Lake Masters had been satisfactory, and Mr. 
Bernard responded they had been using this company for over 10 years, and it had been 
very helpful and responsive. 
 
 Mr. Ward informed the Board that Lake Masters had been merged into a company 
called Solitude, which was a British based international firm that acquired firms worldwide.  
He said he had received an email stating Lake Masters would now be operating under the 
name of Solitude. 
 
 Mr. Ballinger asked if different ownership might cause any problems.  Mr. Bernard 
said he did not foresee any, and it was a one year removal with a 30-day notice. 
 
 Mr. Weber asked if it made sense to have some type of a document from Solitude 
stating that they were accepting the offer that was made as written with no changes.   
 



Miromar Lakes Community Development District January 11, 2018 

10 | P a g e  
 
 

 Mr. Urbancic responded that they would be doing a new contract which would reflect 
the new name. 
 
 Mr. Ward called for a motion to approve the bid with Solitude Lake Management. 

 
Motion was made by Mr. Refkin and seconded by Mr. Ballinger 
to accept the bid of Solitude Lake Management as presented, 
and with all in favor, the motion was approved. 

 
 
4. Staff Reports 

a)  District Attorney  

Mr. Urbancic gave an update on the permitting situation and the Army Corps of 
Engineers.  He said there had been some correspondence relating to the permitting 
of the riprap with South Florida Water Management District.  The Army Corps of 
Engineers had stated the CDD was in violation of the permit and the Clean Water Act.  
He said the Army Corps of Engineers stayed the enforcement of that process while 
the CDD pursued an after-the-fact permit for the riprap, and simultaneously pursued 
an extension and modification of the permit, so it applied to both the remainder of 
Miromar Lakes and University Village.  He said the hope was to get a separate after-
the-fact permit issued for the riprap, but what the Army Corps did was merge the two 
together.  However, there were different requirements for each, and this was broken 
down into sections.  Mr. Urbancic stated this would eliminate the enforcement action. 

Mr. Ward added the riprap that had been installed, which had been subject to the 
enforcement action, was now approved.  He said all that needed to be done on a 
going forward basis was to notify the Corps on the installation of any new riprap. 

Mr. Urbancic said if the Board wished to put in any new riprap, all they needed to do 
was notify the Corps.  He said they were approved up to 34,000, which was what had 
been approved with South Florida Water Management and zoning with Lee County.  
He explained that did not mean Miromar Lakes had to have 34,000, but they could if 
they needed.  He said after the development work around the lake was completed, a 
certification letter would be provided which would indicate the linear feet of shoreline 
and riprap, and this would close out the riprap portion. 

Dr. Herring asked whose cost the riprap would be, the developer or the CDD.  Mr. 
Urbancic said it was the developer’s cost. 

Mr. Urbancic pointed out the 34,000 was 65% of the shoreline approved to date.  He 
said if the shoreline increased, there would need to be another Corps permit. 

Dr. Herring asked if that included the shoreline by Center Place.  Mr. Urbancic 
responded that it was only the shoreline that was within the boundaries of the 
District. 



Miromar Lakes Community Development District January 11, 2018 

11 | P a g e  
 
 

Mr. Ward asked about new installation of riprap and the requirement that it be 
approved by the Corps before it was installed.  Mr. Urbancic said he didn’t think it 
needed to be approved, but they needed to inform the Corps that it was being 
installed. 

Mr. Urbancic said to be informed of when riprap was being installed, the CDD needed 
to rely on the Master Association or Lee County.  The Board discussed a possible 
process by which this communication could take place. 

   
b) District Engineer – No report. 

 
c) District Manager - No report. 
 
    

5. Supervisor's Requests and Audience Comment 
 
 Mr. Ward called for comments from the Board, and their were none. 
  
 Mr. Ward called for further comments from the audience, and there were none. 
 
6. Adjournment 
 

 Mr. Ward asked for a motion to adjourn. 
 

Motion was made by Dr. Herring and seconded by Mr. Refkin to 
adjourn the meeting, and with all in favor, the motion was 
approved. 

 
 The meeting was adjourned about 3:12 p.m. 
 
 Miromar Lakes Community  

Development District 
 
     
 
_________________________________  ______________________________ 
James P. Ward, Secretary    Dr. David HerringError! Bookmark not 
defined., Chairman  



FTL:1224597:1  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-3 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
MIROMAR LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT ACCEPTING CERTAIN FEE SIMPLE AND 
EASEMENT CONVEYANCES RELATING TO THE LAKE 
COMMONLY KNOWN AS LAKE 5; AUTHORIZING THE 
CHAIRMAN OR THE VICE CHAIRMAN (IN THE 
CHAIRMAN’S ABSENCE) TO EXECUTE SUCH 
CONVEYANCE DOCUMENTS TO THE EXTENT 
NECESSARY TO EVIDENCE THE DISTRICT’S 
ACCEPTANCE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Miromar Lakes Community Development District (the “District”) is a 

community development district that was established pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 190, 
Florida Statutes by the Board of County Commissioners of Lee County, Florida through the 
adoption of Ordinance No. 00-17 on September 12, 2000, as amended by that certain Ordinance 
No. 10-22 adopted on April 27, 2010 by the Board of County Commissioners of Lee County, 
Florida; and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install, 

operate, finance and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure including, 
but not limited to, district roads, sanitary sewer collection system, potable water distribution 
system, reclaimed water distribution system, stormwater/floodplain management, off-site 
improvements, landscape and hardscape, irrigation system, street lighting and other public 
improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District owns, operates and maintains certain lakes and stormwater 

management improvements for the benefit of property owners and residents within the District 
including, without limitation, portions of the lake commonly known as Lake 5; and  

 
WHEREAS, the District desires to accept certain fee simple conveyances of portions of 

Lake 5 together with various easements necessary for the maintenance of portions of Lake 5.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF MIROMAR LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 
 
SECTION 1.  FINDINGS.  The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated 

herein by this reference. 
 
SECTION 2.   ACCEPTANCE OF CONVEYANCES.  The District hereby desires to 

accept those certain fee simple conveyances of portions of the lake commonly known as Lake 5 
together with various easements necessary for the maintenance of portions of Lake 5 that are 
attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit “A” (“Conveyance Documents”).   



Resolution 2018-3  March 8, 2018 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
 
SECTION 3.  DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY.  The Chairman or the Vice 

Chairman (in the Chairman’s absence) of the District’s Board of Supervisors is hereby 
authorized to execute the Conveyance Documents as necessary to evidence the District’s 
acceptance of the subject conveyances.   The Vice Chairman, Secretary, and any Assistant 
Secretary of the District’s Board of Supervisors are hereby authorized to countersign any 
Conveyance Documents signed by the Chairman or Vice Chairman (in the Chairman’s absence), 
if necessary or required.   

 
SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section or part of a section of this Resolution 

be declared invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part 
of a section of this Resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears 
that such other section or part of a section of this Resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent 
upon the section or part of a section so held to be invalid or unconstitutional, it being expressly 
found and declared that the remainder of this Resolution would have been adopted despite the 
invalidity of such section or part of such section. 

 
SECTION 5.  CONFLICTS.  All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to 

the extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed. 
 
SECTION 6.   EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon its adoption. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Miromar Lakes 

Community Development District this 8th day of March, 2018.  
 
 
 

   MIROMAR LAKES 
   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  
Attest:   DISTRICT 

 
 

             
James P. Ward, Secretary   David Herring, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
  



Resolution 2018-3  March 8, 2018 

3 | P a g e  
 

Exhibit “A” 
 













































































JPWard  and Associates LLC       

 

Miromar Lakes Community Development District 

Financial Statements 

January 31, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Visit our web site:  www.miromarlakescdd.org 

 

Prepared by: 

JPWARD AND ASSOCIATES, LLC 

2900 Northeast 12th Terrace 
Suite 1 

OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA 33334 
E-MAIL:  JIMWARD@JPWARDASSOCIATES.COM 

PHONE:  (954) 658-4900 
 



JPWard  and Associates LLC       

 

Miromar Lakes Community Development District 

Table of  Contents 

 Page 

Balance Sheet—All Funds 1-2 
 
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

General Fund 3-5 
Debt Service Fund  

Series 2012 Bonds 6 
Series 2015 Bonds 7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JPWard & Associates, LLC 
2900 Northeast 12th Terrace 

Suite 1 
                                             Oakland Park, Florida 33334  

(954) 658-4900 

 



Miromar Lakes Community Development District
Balance Sheet

for the Period Ending January 31, 2018

Unaudited
Prepared by:

JPWARD and Associates, LLC 1

 

General Fund Series 2012 Series 2015
General Long 

Term Debt
General Fixed 

Assets

Assets  
Cash and Investments

General Fund - Invested Cash 1,127,820$       -$                        -$                        -$                     -$                    1,127,820$       
Debt Service Fund

Interest Account -                          -                          -                          -                            -                           -                          
Sinking Account -                          -                          -                          -                            -                           -                          
Reserve Account -                          397,373             754,375             -                            -                           1,151,748          
Revenue -                          918,741             461,506             -                            -                           1,380,248          
Prepayment Account -                          0                         -                          -                            -                           0                         

Due from Other Funds
General Fund -                          -                          -                          -                            -                           -                          
Debt Service Fund(s) -                          -                            -                           -                          

Market Valuation Adjustments -                          -                            -                           -                          
Accrued Interest Receivable -                          -                          -                          -                            -                           -                          
Assessments Receivable -                          -                          -                          -                            -                           -                          
Accounts Receivable -                          -                          -                          -                            -                           -                          
Amount Available in Debt Service Funds -                          -                          -                          1,316,114           -                           1,316,114          
Amount to be Provided by Debt Service Funds -                          -                          -                          25,263,886         -                           25,263,886       
Investment in General Fixed Assets (net of 
depreciation) -                          -                          -                          -                            36,514,917        36,514,917       

Total Assets 1,127,820$       1,316,114$        1,215,881$        26,580,000$       36,514,917$      66,754,732$     

Account Groups Totals      
(Memorandum 

Only)

Governmental Funds
Debt Service Funds



Miromar Lakes Community Development District
Balance Sheet

for the Period Ending January 31, 2018

Unaudited
Prepared by:

JPWARD and Associates, LLC 2

 

General Fund Series 2012 Series 2015
General Long 

Term Debt
General Fixed 

Assets

Account Groups Totals      
(Memorandum 

Only)

Governmental Funds
Debt Service Funds

Liabilities
Accounts Payable & Payroll Liabilities -$                       -$                        -$                        -$                         -$                        -$                        
Due to Other Funds -                          

     General Fund -                          -                          -                          -                            -                           -                          
     Debt Service Fund(s) -                          -                          -                          -                            -                           -                          

Bonds Payable -                          -                          
Current Portion -                          -                          -                          $1,115,000.00 -                           1,115,000          
Long Term -                          -                          -                          $25,465,000.00 -                           25,465,000       

Total Liabilities   -$                       -$                        -$                        26,580,000$       -$                        26,580,000$     

Fund Equity and Other Credits
Investment in General Fixed Assets -                          -                            36,514,917        36,514,917       
Fund Balance

Restricted
Beginning: October 1, 2017 (Unaudited) -                          794,981             2,982,849          -                            -                           3,777,830          
Results from Current Operations -                          521,133             (1,766,968)         -                            -                           (1,245,835)        

Unassigned
Beginning: October 1, 2017 (Unaudited) 423,111            -                            -                           423,111             
Results from Current Operations 704,710            -                            -                           704,710             

Total Fund Equity and Other Credits 1,127,820$       1,316,114$        1,215,881$        -$                         36,514,917$      40,174,732$     

Total Liabilities, Fund Equity and Other Credits 1,127,820$       1,316,114$        1,215,881$        26,580,000$       36,514,917$      66,754,732$     



Miromar Lakes Community Development District
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through January 31, 2018

Unaudited
Prepared by:

JPWARD and Associates, LLC 3

Description October November December January  Year to Date 
Total Annual 

Budget
% of 

Budget

Revenue and Other Sources
Carryforward -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -                   -$                     N/A
Interest

Interest - General Checking 21               16               38                   37                   112                  300 37%
Special Assessment Revenue

Special Assessments - On-Roll -                  242,214     614,917         38,638           895,769          911,287 98%
Special Assessments - Off-Roll 113,648     -                  -                      113,648         227,295          454,590 50%

Miscellaneous Revenue -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   0 N/A
Intragovernmental Transfer In -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   0 N/A

Total Revenue and Other Sources: 113,668$   242,230$   614,955$      152,322$      1,123,176       1,366,177$    82%

Expenditures and Other Uses
Legislative

Board of Supervisor's - Fees -                  2,000          -                      1,000             3,000               12,000            25%
Board of Supervisor's - Taxes -                  153             -                      77                   230                  918                  25%

Executive
Professional Management 3,333          3,333          3,333             3,333             13,333             40,000            33%

Financial and Administrative
Audit Services -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   5,200              0%
Accounting Services -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   -                       N/A
Assessment Roll Services -                  -                  18,000           -                      18,000             18,000            100%
Arbitrage Rebate Services -                  1,000          -                      -                      1,000               1,000              100%

Other Contractual Services
Legal Advertising 50               -                  -                      -                      50                    1,200              4%
Trustee Services -                  -                  -                      3,091             3,091               7,900              39%
Property Appraiser/Tax Collector Fees -                  1,191          -                      -                      1,191               2,400              50%
Bank Services 32               48               36                   33                   149                  550                  27%

Travel and Per Diem -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   -                       N/A
Communications & Freight Services

Postage, Freight & Messenger 52               52               -                      -                      104                  400                  26%
Insurance 5,778          -                  -                      -                      5,778               5,800              100%
Printing & Binding -                  432             42                   74                   548                  1,200              46%
Website Development -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   1,000              0%
Office Supplies -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   -                       N/A
Subscription & Memberships 175             -                  -                      -                      175                  175                  100%



Miromar Lakes Community Development District
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through January 31, 2018

Unaudited
Prepared by:

JPWARD and Associates, LLC 4

Description October November December January  Year to Date 
Total Annual 

Budget
% of 

Budget
Legal Services

Legal - General Counsel -                  7,975          6,526             -                      14,501             30,000            48%
Legal - Litigation -                  -                  1,125             -                      1,125               -                       N/A
Legal - Center Place - Special Counsel -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   30,000            0%
Legal - Center Place -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   -                       N/A
Land Exchange - Salerno -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   -                       N/A

Other General Government Services
Engineering Services - General Fund -                  3,245          -                      3,097             6,342               15,000            42%
NPDES -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   250                  0%
Asset Administration Services 833             833             833                833                 3,333               10,000            33%
Center Place -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   -                       N/A

Sub-Total: 10,254       20,263       29,896           11,537           71,950            182,993          39%

Hurricane Relief Services
Engineering Services

General Engineering -                  6,820          13,211           11,008           31,039             -                       N/A
Landscaping - Debris Removal

Landscaping Removal -                  -                  70,356           -                      70,356             -                       N/A
Sub-Total: -                  6,820         83,568           11,008           101,395          -                       

Stormwater Management Services
Professional Services

Asset Management 2,317          3,517          2,317             2,317             10,467             27,800            38%
Mitigation Monitoring -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   500                  0%

Utility Services
Electric - Aeration Systems 339             410             37                   421                 1,207               4,400              27%

Lake System
Aquatic Weed Control 5,464          5,464          5,464             -                      16,392             65,568            25%
Lake Bank Maintenance -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   3,000              0%
Water Quality Testing -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   13,840            0%
Water Control Structures -                  -                  -                      3,460             3,460               11,000            31%
Grass Carp Installation -                  -                  -                      2,500             2,500               -                       N/A
Litoral Shelf Barrier/Replanting -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   -                       N/A
Aeration System -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   2,000              0%

Wetland System
Routine Maintenance 3,133          3,133          3,133             -                      9,400               42,100            22%

Other Current Charges -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   -                       N/A



Miromar Lakes Community Development District
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through January 31, 2018

Unaudited
Prepared by:

JPWARD and Associates, LLC 5

Description October November December January  Year to Date 
Total Annual 

Budget
% of 

Budget
Capital Outlay

Aeration Systems -                  -                  -                      2,204             2,204               10,800            20%
Littortal Shelf Replanting/Barrier -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   6,000              0%
Lake Bank Restoration -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   -                       N/A
 Turbidity Screens -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   13,800            0%
Erosion Restoration -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   264,253          0%

Contingencies -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   3,000              0%
Sub-Total: 11,253       12,524       10,951           10,901           45,630            468,061          10%

Landscaping Services
Professional Management

Asset Management 3,117          3,117          3,117             3,117             12,467             37,400            33%
Utility Services

Electric -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   -                       N/A
Irrigation Water -                  -                  -                      2,702             2,702               5,000              54%

Repairs & Maintenance
Public Area Landscaping -                  25,549       37,592           47,409           110,550          452,000          24%
Irrigation System 2,507          -                  -                      -                      2,507               8,000              31%
Well System -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   1,000              0%
Plant Replacement -                  4,857          -                      -                      4,857               30,000            16%

Other Current Charges
Lee County Assessments -                  50,852       -                      -                      50,852             51,000            100%
Charlotte County Assessments -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   375                  0%
Hendry County - Panther Habitat Taxes -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   -                       N/A

Operating Supplies
Mulch 14,567       -                  -                      988                 15,555             19,000            82%

Capital Outlay -                  -                  -                      -                      -                   111,348          0%
Sub-Total: 20,191       84,375       40,709           54,215           199,491          715,123          28%

Total Expenditures and Other Uses: 41,699$     123,982$   165,123$      87,662$         418,466$        1,366,177$    31%

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Fund Balance 71,969       118,248     449,832         64,660           704,710          -                   
Fund Balance - Beginning 423,111     495,080     613,328         1,063,160     423,111          526,359          
Fund Balance - Ending 495,080$   613,328$   1,063,160$   1,127,820$   1,127,820       526,359$        



Miromar Lakes Community Development District
Debt Service Fund - Series 2012  Bonds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through January 31, 2018

Unaudited
Prepared by:

JPWard and Associates, LLC 6

Description October November December January  Year to Date 
Total Annual 

Budget
% of 

Budget

Revenue and Other Sources
Carryforward -$                          -$                -$                    -$                    -                          -$                    N/A
Interest Income

Reserve Account 60,118                 (59,623)      133                267                895                         40,000           2%
Prepayment Account -                            -                  -                      -                      -                          -                      N/A
Revenue Account 199                      209             74                   289                772                         30                   2572%
Interest Account -                            -                  -                      -                      -                          -                      N/A

Special Assessment Revenue
Special Assessments - On-Roll -                            213,103     541,011         33,994           788,107                 801,872         98%
Special Assessments - Off-Roll -                            -                  -                      -                      -                          160,379         0%
Special Assessments - Prepayments -                            -                  -                      -                      -                          -                      N/A

Operating Transfers In (From Other Funds) -                            -                  -                      -                      -                          -                      N/A
Total Revenue and Other Sources: 60,317$              153,689$   541,218$      34,549$        789,773                 1,002,281$   N/A

Expenditures and Other Uses
Debt Service

Principal Debt Service - Mandatory
Series 2012 Bonds -                            -                  -                      -                      -                          465,000$      0%

Principal Debt Service - Early Redemptions
Series 2012 Bonds -                            -                  -                      -                      -                          -                      N/A

Interest Expense
Series 2012 Bonds -                            268,641     -                      -                      268,641                 537,281         50%

Operating Transfers Out (To Other Funds) -                            -                  -                      -                      -                          -                      N/A
Total Expenditures and Other Uses: -$                         268,641$   -$                    -$                    268,641                 1,002,281$   N/A

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Fund Balance 60,317                 (114,952)    541,218         34,549           521,133                 (0)                    
Fund Balance - Beginning 794,981              855,298     740,346         1,281,565     794,981                 870,552         
Fund Balance - Ending 855,298$            740,346$   1,281,565$   1,316,114$   1,316,114             870,551$      

Note:  Negative interest income due to maturity of investment coming due November 17, 2017



Miromar Lakes Community Development District
Debt Service Fund - Series 2015  Bonds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through January 31, 2018

Unaudited
Prepared by:

JPWard and Associates, LLC 7

Description October November December January  Year to Date 
Total Annual 

Budget
% of 

Budget

Revenue and Other Sources
Carryforward -$                   -$                    -$                   -$                    -                  -$                    N/A
Interest Income

Reserve Account 142,555        (141,575)       213                507                1,700              90,000           2%
Prepayment Account 346                836                0                     -                      1,182              -                      N/A
Revenue Account 1,368            (701)               117                209                993                 -                      N/A

Special Assessment Revenue
Special Assessments - On-Roll -                     65,462           166,190        10,442           242,094         246,240         98%
Special Assessments - Off-Roll -                     -                      -                     -                      -                  1,179,635     0%
Special Assessments - Prepayments -                     -                      -                     -                      -                  -                      N/A

Operating Transfers In (From Other Funds) -                     -                      -                     -                      -                  -                      N/A
Bond Proceeds -                     -                      -                     -                      -                  -                      N/A

Total Revenue and Other Sources: 144,269$      (75,978)$       166,520$      11,158$         245,970$       1,515,875$   N/A

Expenditures and Other Uses
Debt Service

Principal Debt Service - Mandatory
Series 2015 Bonds -                     -                      -                     -                      -                  650,000$      0%

Principal Debt Service - Early Redemptions
Series 2015 Bonds -                     1,580,000     -                     -                      1,580,000      -                      N/A

Interest Expense
Series 2015 Bonds -                     432,938         -                     -                      432,938         865,875         50%

Operating Transfers Out (To Other Funds) -                     -                      -                     -                      -                  -                      N/A
Total Expenditures and Other Uses: -$                   2,012,938$   -$                   -$                   2,012,938      1,515,875$   N/A

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Fund Balance 144,269        (2,088,915)    166,520        11,158           (1,766,968)     -                      
Fund Balance - Beginning 2,982,849     3,127,118     1,038,203     1,204,723     2,982,849      -                      
Fund Balance - Ending 3,127,118$  1,038,203$   1,204,723$   1,215,881$   1,215,881      -$                   

Note:  Negative interest income due to maturity of investment coming due November 17, 2017


	ML  - Cover Page - Agenda
	ML - Agenda 03 08 2018  FINAL
	MIROMAR LAKES 1-11-18 Meeting Minutes.nd
	MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
	MIROMAR LAKES
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
	The Regular Meeting of the Miromar Lakes Community Development District’s Board of Supervisors was held on Thursday, January 11, 2018, at 2:00 p.m. at the Beach Clubhouse, 18061 Miromar Lakes Parkway, Miromar Lakes, Florida 33913.

	ML - Resolution 2018-3 Accepting Certain Shorelines - 03 01 2018
	RESOLUTION NO. 2018-3

	ML - Resolution 2018-3 Location Map of Acceptance Areas 03 08 2018
	ML - Resolution 2018-3 Exhibit 1 - Assignment Unit XVII - Costa Maggiore Phase 1
	ML - Resolution 2018-3 Exhibit 2 Assignment of Reservations - Lake Maintenance Easements 03 08 2018
	ML - Resolution 2018-3 Exhibit 3  Easement - LME Bellini and Voltara 03 08 2018
	ML - Landscaping Program Plan - 03 08 2018 Meeting
	ML - Financial Statements-Unaudited 01 31 2018
	ML  - Cover Page - Financial Statements XX
	ML  - Table of Contents - Financial Statements XX
	ML - Financial Statements-Unaudited 01 31 2018
	Balance Sheet
	GF - Monthly P&L
	DSF 2012 - Monthly P&L 
	DSF 2015 - Monthly P&L




<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /None

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice




<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /None

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice




<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /None

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice



